
Contact:  Meryl James, Governance Officer
Ffon:   01633 656656
E-mail: Democratic.services@newport.gov.uk
Date of Issue: Tuesday, 9 July 2019

Agenda
Licensing Sub-Committee
Date: Tuesday, 23 July 2019

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Civic Centre

To: Councillors D Davies (Chair), H Thomas (Deputy Chair), J Cleverly, M Rahman, 
C Ferris, J Hughes, Y Forsey, T Suller and M Kellaway

Item Wards Affected

1  Apologies for Absence  

2  Declarations of Interest  

3  Licensing Sub-Committee Code of Practice  (Pages 3 - 16)

4  Application for a Premises Licence  (Pages 17 - 64)

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Conduct and Procedure of Licensing Sub-committee

1 Membership and appointment of Chair

1.1 The Licensing Sub-committee comprises all members of the committee, other than those 
who have an interest or who is the ward member for the ward in which premises under 
consideration is located. The quorum is three. The Chair will be elected on the day by a 
simple majority vote.

1.2 For example, if they live in the vicinity of the licensed premises, or have a friendship or a 
close personal association with either the applicant or any objector this would disqualify the 
Member from considering the matter.

1.3 Members of the Licensing Sub-Committees should inform the Senior Democratic Services 
Officer immediately if they consider that they are disqualified from considering any 
application, if members of the Licensing Sub-Committee become aware of any personal 
interest in any application before them they should declare the interest at the beginning of 
the meeting and withdraw immediately.

2 Ward Councillors

2.1 Ward Councillors are no longer expressly permitted to make representation in their capacity 
as Ward Councillors although they are entitled to make representations as individuals falling 
within the category of “any other person”, if they are likely to be affected by an application 
(for example if they live in close proximity to the licensed premises).  Councillors however 
must comply at all times with the Members Code of Conduct (“the Code”).  Ward Councillors 
should avoid discussing the application with any of the Licensing Sub-Committee beforehand 
to avoid any suspicion of undue influence or breach of the general obligation in the Code not 
to improperly use their position as a Councillor to secure any advantage.

2.2 If a Ward Councillor has a personal interest in an application (for example, because he/she 
lives in close proximity to the premises), then this is also likely to be a “prejudicial” interest 
under the Code.  Provided that the Member declares the interest and withdraws from the 
hearing after making representations, then he/she is entitled under paragraph 14(2) of the 
Code to appear at the hearing in the same way as any other member of the public having 
made a relevant representation within the meaning of the Act (“any other person”).  This also 
applies whether or not the Councillor is a Member of the Licensing Committee.  Because of 
this “personal and prejudicial” interest the Ward Councillor cannot have any other 
involvement with officers or members regarding the application.

2.3 Ward Councillors who are not members of Licensing Committee may also act as the 
appointed representatives for any other person at the hearing, if requested to do so, but they 
should avoid discussing the application with any of the Licensing Sub-Committee 
beforehand.  If a Ward Member is representing any other person, that other person must 
have objected by their own accord before a Ward Member can be requested to act as their 
representative at the hearing.

2.4 Ward Councillors who are members of Licensing Committee should not appear as the 
appointed representatives for any other person at the hearing because of the requirements of 
natural justice and the need to avoid giving any impression of undue influence or breach of 
the general obligation in the Code not to improperly use their position as a Councillor to 
secure any advantage.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



3 Lobbying

3.1 Other Members must not lobby any Member of the Licensing Sub-committee, directly or 
indirectly, about any application before them.  

3.2 Members of the public or any of the parties must not lobby any members of the Licensing 
Sub-Committee about any application before them.  If any of the members of the Licensing 
Sub-Committee are approached by any person about a licensing matter, they should explain 
that they cannot discuss the matter and refer the person to the Licensing Officer.  Any written 
representations received by individual members of the Licensing Sub-Committee must be 
passed to the Licensing Officer and reported at the hearing.

4 Chair of the Licensing Sub-Committee

The Chair of the Licensing Sub-Committee is to be elected by Members on the day by simple 
majority vote.

5 Quorum 

5.1 Although the Act allows for the hearing to continue with two members present, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Statement of Licensing Policy provides that three Councillors shall 
constitute a quorum for any meeting and it is good administrative practice for three members 
to be present.

If the meeting becomes inquorate at any time, the matter will need to be adjourned or 
referred to full Licensing Committee.

5.3 Membership may change during the course of a Sub-Committee meeting only if an individual 
member is disqualified from considering some but not all of the applications on the agenda.  
All members considering an application however must be present throughout the individual 
hearing.  If, for any reason, a member needs to withdraw during the hearing, the proceedings 
should be temporarily adjourned until the member returns.  The meeting will only commence 
if quorate.  If a member arrives late and after the hearing commences, he or she will be 
disqualified from hearing the specific case under consideration but can hear other cases set 
out in the agenda. 

6 Statutory Guidance

6.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 SI 44/2005 and the The Licensing Act 
2003 (Hearings) (Amendment) Regulations 2004 SI 78/2005 (“the Regulations”) made under 
Section 183 of the Act set out the statutory framework for the Licensing Sub-Committee 
hearings.

6.2 These Regulations make provision for hearings required to be held by the Council as 
Licensing Authority, under the Licensing Act 2003.  In particular, the Regulations provide for 
the timing of the hearings and the notification requirements regarding the time and date of 
the hearings and information to be given to the parties.  In addition, provision is made for a 
party to provide information to the Licensing Committee about attendance at a hearing, 
representations, the seeking of permission for another person to attend to assist and whether 
a party believes that a hearing is necessary.

6.3 The Regulations provide for a range of procedural issues to govern the way in which 
preparations are made for a hearing, the procedures to be followed, the rights of parties at 
the hearing, the keeping of records and the manner of giving notices.  The Regulations also 
make provision for the timing of the Licensing Committee’s determination following a hearing.

Page 4



6.4 Insofar as the Regulations do not make specific provision for procedures for and at hearings, 
the Licensing Authority can determine its own procedures.

7 Notice of Hearings 

7.1 The provisions of the Local Government Act 1972 requiring at least three clear working days’ 
notice of Council and Committee meetings do not apply to hearings conducted under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

7.2 Instead Regulation 6 of the Regulations prescribes the period of notice to be given for a 
Licensing Committee hearing, depending upon the type of application being considered.

7.2.1 At least two clear working days’ notice must be given if the hearing is to consider
 the cancellation of an interim authority notice following a police objection
 counter notice following a police objection to a temporary event notice

7.2.2 at least five clear working days’ notice must be given if the hearing is to consider
 review of premises licence following a closure order
 determination of application for conversion of existing licence
 determination of application for conversion of existing club certificate
 determination of application by holder of justices’ licence for the grant of a 

personal licence

7.2.3 In all other cases, at least 10 clear working day’s notice of the hearing must be given.

8 Timescale for arranging hearings

8.1 Regulations 4 and 5 and Schedule 1 set out the time periods within which the Council is 
required to arrange hearings.  Where a hearing cannot be concluded in one day and has to 
be held on more than one day, the Regulations require that the hearing must be arranged to 
take place on consecutive working days.  

8.2 The time frame for arranging hearings again depends on the nature of the application and 
varies from 20 working days from the last date when representation may be made or notice 
may be received from the Police to five working days in the case of cancellation of an interim 
authority notice following a police objection.

9 Form of Notice

9.1 Regulation 34 requires that notice of the hearing shall be in writing although it is a matter for 
the Council to determine how the notice should be given. The Regulations specifically 
provide that notice can be given electronically (eg by email or fax transmission) provided that 
the recipient agrees to this method of notice beforehand and a hard copy of the notice is also 
despatched at the same time.  The notice is then deemed to have been properly served at 
the time of the electronic transmission.  Any notice served by second class post would 
generally be deemed to have been served within two working days.

9.2 It is recommended that all notices and information should be sent to the parties by second 
class post.  In the case of emergency applications that have to be dealt with at short notice or 
where the parties specifically request, copies will also be sent by email or fax, where these 
details are known.

Page 5



10 Information to be provided

10.1 Regulation 7 provides that the following information must be sent out with the notice of 
hearing

 The rights of attendance, assistance and representation
 The consequences if a party does not attend or is not represented at the hearing (which 

will usually be that the hearing will proceed in the party’s absence) 
 The procedure to be followed at the hearing
 Any particular points on which the Licensing Committee considers that it wants 

clarification from any party at the hearing

10.2 Regulation 7(2) also provides that, in relation to the hearings listed in column 1 of Schedule 3 
of the Regulations, certain specified documents must be sent with the notice of hearing to the 
persons identified.  For most types of application, this means that copies of the relevant 
representations or notices given must be sent to the applicants or licence holders.

10.3 The Regulations require that the notice of the hearing and supporting information must be 
sent to the appropriate parties ie the applicant and any persons making relevant 
representations.  There is no requirement for public notice to be given of the hearing or for 
the supporting information to be made available to the press and public or any other 
members of the Council.  The Council however has a discretion as to whether or not to 
publicise the hearing more widely.

10.4 Having regard to the principles of open government, the Constitutional requirements that 
decisions are taken in a transparent and accountable manner and the requirements of 
Regulation 14(1) that hearings are generally conducted in public, it is recommended that the 
Licensing Sub-committees follow the same publicity arrangements as with other Committee 
meetings.

11 Requirements for Applicants and any other persons

11.1 Upon receipt of the notice of the meeting, the Applicant and any other person must inform 
the Council in writing

 Whether they intend to attend or be represented at the hearing
 Whether they consider a hearing to be unnecessary
 Requests for any other people to attend the hearing eg witnesses (including their names 

and a brief description of the evidence that they can give and its relevance to the 
application)

11.2 In the case of emergency applications, such as the cancellation of an interim authority notice 
following representations by the police or a counter notice following a police objection to a 
temporary events notice, this information must be provided not later than one working day 
before the hearing.  In the case of the review of premises licences following closure orders, 
an application for conversion of existing licences or club certificates and the grant of personal 
licences, the information must be provided at least two working days before the hearing.  In 
all other cases the information must be provided at least five working days before the 
hearing.

11.3 It is recommended that a separate letter be sent to the Applicant and any other person at the 
same time as the agenda for the meeting, reminding them of the need for this information 
and asking them for a response as soon as possible before the meeting.  If the Licensing 
Sub-committee is informed in good time before the meeting that the parties do not wish to 
attend, then it may be possible to reschedule other business or applications for that meeting.

Page 6



11.4 Regulation 9 allows the Council to dispense with the need for a hearing if the Applicant and 
all any other persons agree.  If all the parties respond to the request for information stating 
that they consider a hearing to be unnecessary, the hearing can be vacated and notice given 
to the parties accordingly.  A determination must then be made within 10 working days of the 
notice.

11.5 Regulation 10 provides that any party may withdraw their representations by giving written 
notice at least 24 hours before the hearing or orally at the hearing itself.  There are no 
powers to avoid wasted costs in favour of either party in the event of an abortive hearing due 
to late withdrawal of representations. The parties should be encouraged to give as much 
notice as possible if they intend to withdraw their representations to avoid the unnecessary 
time and expense of arranging a hearing.

 
11.6 Where all objections are withdrawn and/or all the parties agree that a hearing may be 

dispensed with, the applications may be determined by officers under delegated powers.

12 Extensions of Time and adjournments (Regulations 11-13)

The Licensing Sub-Committee have a general discretion to extend the time limits contained in the 
Regulations or adjourn hearings if this is considered to be necessary in the public interest.  Proper 
notice would have to be given of any extension of time or adjournment.  Time cannot be extended 
or hearings adjourned if this would result in a failure to comply with the timescales set out in the 
Act.

13 The Hearing

13.1 Exclusions
Regulation 14 provides that all hearings must be held in public.  The Licensing Sub-
Committee may however exclude the press and public (including the parties and their 
representatives) from all or part of the hearing if they consider that the public interest in doing 
so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in 
public.

13.2 The Access to Information provisions of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 do 
not apply to hearings before the Licensing Sub-Committee.  The test for exclusion of the 
press and public is not whether there is “exempt information” (as defined in Schedule 12A) 
which is likely to be disclosed, but whether it is in the “public interest” that the hearing (or part 
of the hearing) should be in private.

13.3 It is recommended that, as a general rule, all representations from the parties should be 
heard in public unless there are exceptional circumstances.  The overriding public interest 
dictates that hearings should be conducted in a fair, open and transparent manner and 
justice should be seen to be done.  The Council’s constitution is also based on democratic 
open government, accountability and public access to meetings.  The parties should be given 
the opportunity at the beginning of the hearing to make an application for a private hearing, 
but they would have to establish a clear reason why this should override the public interest in 
an open hearing.  The fact that personal information or information relating to financial, 
business or commercial interests would be disclosed would not, in itself, justify exclusion.  An 
application for exclusion of the press and public could be made, for example, where sensitive 
information relating to individual children could be disclosed in relation to a policy issue 
involving the protection of children from harm, or where there are criminal justice implications 
involving representations made by the police.  The final decision as to whether the press and 
public should be excluded for all or part of the hearing on public policy grounds is a matter for 
the Licensing Sub-Committee.

13.4 It is however recommended that, as a general rule, the press, public and the relevant parties 
are all excluded from the meeting while the Licensing-Sub-committee deliberate and come to 

Page 7



their decision on the grounds that this private debate is considered to be in the “public 
interest”.  Everyone should then be asked withdraw from the room, except for the Licensing 
Officer, the Democratic Services Officer and the Head of Law and Standards or his 
nominated representative.  These three officers shall be entitled to remain, but only for the 
purpose of offering advice as to procedure or any particular point of law and to record 
decisions. They must not participate in the decision-making by the Licensing Sub-Committee.  
Where it is more convenient, the Licensing Sub-Committee may withdraw to a private room 
rather than require everyone else to withdraw from the meeting room.

13.5 If there are any further points of clarification required, then all of the parties and the public 
should be allowed back into the meeting while these points of clarification are addressed.

13.6 Regulation 25 permits the Licensing Sub-Committee to exclude any person from the hearing 
if they are behaving in a disruptive manner, either permanently or temporarily (permitting 
them to return only if they comply with such conditions as may be specified).  If one of the 
parties is excluded on these grounds and not permitted to return, they are entitled to submit 
to the Licensing Sub-Committee in writing any information which they would have been 
entitled to give orally had they not been excluded from the meeting.

13.7 Representations
Any person or responsible authority may make written representations about an application 
for a premises licence or certificate within a specified period, which is generally 28 working 
days of the receipt of the application.  Representations or requests for review will only be 
relevant if they relate to the four licensing objectives. The applicant will be provided with 
copies of all relevant representations received at the same time as the notice of hearing.  
The written representations will also be referred to as background papers to the Report of the 
Licensing Officer, which will be circulated to Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee and 
made available to the press and public as soon as possible and, in any event, at least two 
clear working days before the hearing.

13.8 Advice should therefore be given that, if any person responds to any notice or advertisement, 
their letter of objection or support will be made available to the public, including personal data 
(such as names and addresses) in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1988.  If any 
person objects to their name and address, or any other personal information, being made 
public, then their representations will need to be redacted or anonymised before being 
circulated (but this may affect the weight that the Licensing Sub-Committee attaches to their 
representations).

13.9 Where relevant representations have been made and an application is to be determined at a 
hearing, the applicant and those parties who have made representations have a right to 
attend the hearing (subject to rights of exclusion) and may be assisted or represented at the 
hearing by any person (whether or not that person is legally qualified) (Regulation 15).

13.10Regulation 16 provides that a party shall be entitled at the hearing to
 Give further information in response to a point upon which the Licensing authority has 

given notice that it wants clarification
 Question any other party, if permission is given by the Licensing Sub-Committee
 Address the Licensing Sub-Committee

13.11Regulation 17 provides that Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee may question any 
party or other person appearing at the hearing.

13.12In considering any application, representations or notice made by a party, the Licensing Sub-
Committee may take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representations or notice, either before the hearing or, with the 
consent of the parties, at the hearing.  The Licensing Sub-Committee has discretion as to 
whether to admit this documentary evidence but should, generally allow this to be presented 

Page 8



if it is relevant and material to the application, the representations or notice submitted and the 
licensing objectives.  This however should not be seen as an opportunity to introduce new 
representations outside the statutory timescale.  The parties should be advised to provide 
any additional documentary evidence as soon as possible before the hearing and, wherever 
possible, this should be circulated in advance to the Members of the Licensing Sub-
Committee and the other parties.  The Sub-Committee will then decide at the hearing 
whether or not this additional documentary evidence should be admitted and considered.  If 
admitted, the additional information will then be made available to the press and public at the 
meeting.  If the additional documentary evidence has not been produced before the hearing, 
it can only be admitted with the consent of all the parties.  If any other party objects to the 
evidence being produced at the hearing, the Licensing Sub-Committee has no discretion to 
admit it or take it into account.

14 Failure of parties to attend the hearing

If a party has informed the Council that he/she does not intend to attend or be represented at the 
hearing, then the hearing may proceed in their absence.  If a party, who has not given prior notice 
of his/her intention not to attend the hearing, is absent from the hearing the Licensing Sub-
Committee may either adjourn the hearing or hold the hearing in the party’s absence.  Where the 
hearing proceeds in the absence of a party, the Licensing Sub-Committee must still consider the 
written representations or notice submitted by that party and follow the same principles of decision-
making.

15 Procedure at the hearing

15.1 Subject to the provisions of the Regulations, the Licensing Sub-Committee has the discretion 
to regulate their own proceedings and procedure to be followed at the hearing.  The 
proceedings should be kept as informal as possible although a logical and ordered approach 
should be maintained in order to ensure a fair and impartial hearing.  A suggested form of 
procedure is attached however the Chair should make it clear that the Licensing Sub-
Committee are not totally inflexible and would be prepared to vary the order of proceedings if 
this would facilitate the proper consideration of an application or notice.

15.2 Regulation 7(c) provides that parties should be informed of the procedure to be adopted at 
the hearing when they are sent notice of the arrangements for the meeting.  It is therefore 
suggested that a copy of the written procedure is sent to the parties with the notice of the 
hearing.

15.3 Regulation 22 requires the Licensing Sub-Committee to explain the procedure to the parties 
at the beginning of the hearing and consider any request under Regulation 8(2) for 
permission for another person to appear at the hearing (such permission not to be 
unreasonably withheld).  Prior notice should have been given if parties wish to call witnesses 
or other persons to address the hearing.  Provided that their evidence or representations are 
relevant and material, permission should generally be allowed.

15.4 Regulation 23 provides that the hearing should take the form of a “discussion led by the 
authority” and cross-examination should not be permitted unless the licensing committee 
considers that this is required to enable them to consider the matter properly.  Whilst parties 
and their representatives should not be allowed to make the hearing too adversarial, it is 
suggested that both parties should be allowed an equal opportunity to put questions to the 
other party and their representatives/witnesses (under Regulation 16).  A period of five 
minutes each should be allowed for questions, with the Chair having discretion to disallow 
any questions which are considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee to be irrelevant, hostile 
or repetitive.  Wherever possible, large groups of objectors should be encouraged to appoint 
a single spokesperson to present their case, to save time and avoid unnecessary duplication.

Page 9



15.5 Regulation 24 provides that the Licensing Sub-Committee must allow the parties an equal 
maximum period of time in which to exercise their rights to put questions and address the 
hearing.  It is suggested that, as a general rule, a maximum time of 20 minutes should be 
allowed for both parties, with 10 minutes for addressing the Sub-Committee, five minutes for 
questioning and five minutes for summing up at the end.  The Licensing Sub-Committee can 
however extend time for both parties if this is necessary for the proper consideration of the 
matter.

16 Site Visits

The Sub-Committee may, at its discretion, undertake a site visit of any premises that are the 
subject of any application.  The visit may take place either before the hearing, by arrangement with 
the parties, or the Sub-Committee may adjourn the hearing at any time to visit the premises.  If a 
site visit is undertaken, it should be a fact-finding exercise only and no representations should be 
heard from any party.  Any questions should be addressed to licensing officer(s), wherever 
possible, but if it is necessary to ask a question of any party, this should be done in the presence of 
all the other parties.

17 Determination of applications

17.1 Normally, the licensing Sub-Committee must make its determination at the conclusion of the 
hearing.  In other cases the Sub-committee shall make its determination within five working 
days.  Where a hearing has been dispensed with, the decision must be made within 10 
working days of the notice to dispense with the hearing.

17.2 The Council’s Statement of Licensing policy provides that every decision of the Licensing 
Sub-Committee shall be accompanied with reasons for that decision.  A summary of the 
decision shall be posted on the Council’s website as soon as possible after the decision has 
been made, where it will form part of the statutory licensing register.

17.3 Paragraph 24 provides that comprehensive reasons should be given and, on making findings 
of fact in its reasons, the Licensing Sub-Committee should ensure that they address the 
standard of proof and the burden of proof that they have adopted.  The Licensing Sub-
Committee should also address the extent to which the decision has been made with regard 
to its Statement of Licensing Policy and the Statutory Guidance issued under Section 182 of 
the Act.

17.4 Regulation 28 requires the Council to notify the parties in writing of the determination of the 
Licensing Sub-Committee and their rights of appeal. The Council is also required to send 
notification of the determination to the Chief Officer of Police, where the police have not been 
a party to the hearing.  This notification must be sent within the period specified in the Act or, 
if no period is prescribed, forthwith on making the determination.

18 Right of appeal

Any aggrieved party will have the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of being 
notified of the decision.

19 Record of proceedings

Regulation 30 provides that the Council must keep a record of the hearing in a permanent and 
intelligible form for a period of six years from the date of the determination or, where any appeal is 
brought against the determination of the Licensing Sub-Committee, from the disposal of any 
appeal.  A verbatim note or transcript of the proceedings is not required, but the Minute recording 
the decision must be sufficiently detailed so as to provide an accurate record of both the 
proceedings and the decision taken, together with the reasons given and any conditions imposed.  

Page 10



20 Irregularities

Regulations 31-33 provide that any irregularities or clerical errors shall not invalidate any decision 
or render a determination void and enables the Council to correct any error or cure any irregularity 
as soon as possible.

Organisation of Cases for the Hearing

1 The hearings will normally take place at the Civic Centre, Newport at times to be agreed with 
the Sub-Committee.

2 The agenda for the meetings of the Licensing-Sub-committee shall be agreed by the 
Licensing Officer and the Senior Democratic Services officer after any necessary 
consultation with the relevant Chair of the Licensing Sub-Committee.  The officers shall 
determine how many applications can be heard at each meeting and the order in which the 
applications should be considered, taking into account the number of parties who will be 
attending.

3 Hearings should be scheduled in accordance with the timescales prescribed by the 
Regulations.  In general a hearing must be held within 20 working days after the time has 
expired for making representations.

4 Once the draft agenda has been agreed, the Senior Democratic Services Officer should send 
out notice of the agenda to the Members, press and public in the usual way.  Members 
should immediately inform the Senior Democratic Services Officer if they consider they are 
disqualified from hearing or they have an interest in any specific case.

5 At the same time, the Licensing Officer shall send notice of the hearing to the parties, 
together with
 A copy of the procedure to be followed at the hearing
 Confirmation of the parties’ rights to be assisted or represented at the hearing (whether 

or not that person is legally qualified)
 Confirmation that the parties will be allowed to address the Licensing Sub-Committee and 

put questions to the other parties for a maximum of 20 minutes
 Confirmation that, if a party does not attend the hearing, the hearing would generally 

proceed in his/her absence
 A note of any particular point on which the Licensing Sub-committee requires further 

clarification.
 Copies of all relevant representations received

6 The parties should also be requested to notify the Council as soon as possible (and in any 
event within the timescale prescribed by the Regulations) whether they intend to appear 
and/or be represented at the hearing or whether they consider a hearing to be unnecessary. 

7 If they intend to proceed with a hearing, they should be requested to give advance notice of 
any application to adduce any further documentary evidence (which should preferably be 
provided as soon as possible before the hearing) or request for any other person to appear 
at the hearing.  The request must contain details of the name of the witness and a brief 
description of that person’s evidence.

8 The notice of hearing and supporting documents should be sent by second class post and, 
except in the case of emergency applications or where the Regulations specify a shorter 
period, at least 10 clear working day’s notice should be given.  The Licensing Officer may 
also send electronic copies by email or fax by agreement with the applicants or other party.

Page 11



9 The Chair of the Licensing Sub-committee may meet with the Democratic Services Officer, 
the Solicitor to the Licensing Sub-Committee and the Licensing Officer(s) presenting the 
report in advance of the hearing to identify any issues where further clarification should be 
requested from the parties.  These issues will be notified to the parties by the Licensing 
Officer to enable them to address these issues in their submissions at the hearing.  During 
this preliminary meeting and any pre-agenda meeting, no decisions shall be made and no 
discussions shall be held regarding the substantive merits of the application or 
representations.

10 The hearings shall be attended by a Solicitor, a Democratic Services Officer and the 
Licensing Officer.  The officers shall attend for the sole purpose of giving advice on law and 
procedure and are not parties to the decision.

11 The role of the Solicitor is to provide legal advice in relation to the applications and 
submissions.

12 The role of the Democratic Services Officer is to record the proceedings and the decisions of 
the Sub-Committee and ensure efficient administration.

13 The Licensing Officer shall prepare a written Report for consideration by the Licensing Sub-
Committee, which should include
 A brief summary of the application
 A brief summary of the representations 
 The relevant licensing objectives
 Relevant aspects of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and statutory Guidance
 Other background information (such as copies of letters)

14 The Licensing Officer’s Report should be sent out as soon as possible and, in any event, no 
later than 10 clear working days before the hearing, together with copies of relevant 
documentary evidence submitted by the parties.  Wherever possible, the Licensing Officer’s 
Report should be sent out at the same time as the notice of hearing and supporting 
documents, but this will not be reasonably practicable where there are a significant number 
of applications to be determined.  If additional documentary evidence is provided later by the 
parties, it should be copied and sent to the other parties before the hearing, if reasonably 
practicable.

15 After hearing all the representations and prior to retiring to make its decision, the Licensing 
Sub-Committee may, if it wishes, seek the guidance of the Licensing Officer and/or Solicitor 
on possible conditions that could be attached to any licence.

16 The Democratic Services Officer shall keep a record of the decisions taken and the Licensing 
Officer shall send written confirmation of the decision to the relevant parties, together with 
the reasons, any conditions and their rights of appeal.

Principles of Decision-Making

1 This note is intended to provide members of the Licensing Sub-committee with a guide to the 
principles of decision-making.  The licensing hearings are of a quasi-judicial nature and the 
procedures are, therefore, markedly different to the usual arrangements for Committee 
meetings.

2 It should be noted that the proceedings are governed by adjudication procedures and the 
rules of natural justice will, therefore, apply.  All the parties should be given a full and fair 
hearing, which should be conducted in an open, transparent and accountable manner.

3 Members must, at all times, comply with the Council’s Member Code of Conduct.

Page 12



4 All licensing applications must be considered on the basis of whether they promote the four 
licensing objectives set out in the Act and incorporated in the Statement of Licensing Policy, 
namely
 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 The prevention of public nuisance
 The protection of children from harm

5 In reaching their decisions under the Act, the Licensing Sub-Committee must have regard to 
all relevant considerations including (but not limited to)
 The relevant statutory provisions
 Relevant Statutory Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act
 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy
 The licensing objectives
 The material facts based on the relevant evidence presented and representations 

received
 The individual merits of each case
 The public interest

6 The Licensing Sub-Committee must disregard any irrelevant considerations, including (but 
not limited to) information or evidence which is not relevant to the application or to the 
promotion of the licensing objectives.  Members must also disregard any party political 
considerations or decisions taken in political group meetings.

7 Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee must act fairly, objectively and impartially 
throughout.  They must not show any bias or predetermination and must keep an open 
mind on all applications until they have heard all the relevant representations and evidence.  
Members must not prejudge any application, express any view on the merits of any 
application, organise any support or opposition to any application, in advance of the 
hearing.  Any Member with a “closed mind” on any application would be disqualified from 
sitting on the Licensing Sub-Committee which considers that application.

In the event of any licensing applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council or an 
officer of the Council, the same rules and procedures shall apply.  No account shall be 
taken of the fact that the application is submitted by the Council or an officer and no favour 
or consideration shall be shown in relation to the application.  Any member involved in the 
decision to apply for the licence shall be disqualified from sitting on the Licensing Sub-
Committee which considers the application.

Procedure to be Followed at The Hearing

1 Preliminaries and Opening remarks
At the commencement of the meeting, the Chair for the meeting shall be elected by simple 
majority of members present.

The Chair of the Sub-Committee opens the meeting and welcomes those attending.

The Chair introduces the members and the officers present.

2 Apologies/declarations of interest
The Chair deals with any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.  Any 
substitution of members will be dealt with at this stage.

Page 13



3 Introductions
The Chair invites the applicant, any other person and their representatives to introduce 
themselves and indicate who will be speaking.

The Chair explains the procedures to be followed and the time allocated to each party and 
asks if there are any questions.  (The order of proceedings may be varied at the discretion of 
the Sub-Committee where the parties have any particular preference of where this is 
necessary for proper consideration).  The proceedings will generally be conducted in public 
unless it is in the public interest to hear cases in private.  Any applications to exclude the 
press and public should be dealt with at this stage.

4 Applications
The Chair will inform the parties whether their applications to have certain people attend the 
hearing under Regulation 8(2) (eg witnesses) have been granted or refused.

The Chair will summarise the papers before the Licensing Sub-Committee and will confirm 
that everyone has copies. Chair will ascertain whether any representations have been or are 
now to be withdrawn.  Licensing Sub-Committee will consider any requests for additional 
documentary evidence or other information to be introduced by either party.  (Note that 
advance notification must be given, otherwise the additional information or evidence can only 
be adduced at the hearing with the consent of all the parties and the agreement of the Sub-
Committee).

Chair is to identify any specific points about which the Licensing Sub-Committee have 
requested clarification.

5 Report from Licensing Officer

The Licensing Officer presents the Report outlining
 The nature of the application
 Any relevant background information 
 Relevant issues in relation to the promotion of the four licensing objectives
 Relevant representations received 
 Any relevant policy issues, including the Statement of Licensing Policy and any statutory 

Guidance

The Licensing Officer presenting the report will not make any recommendation regarding the 
determination of the application, but will simply outline the relevant considerations which the 
Licensing Sub-Committee will need to take into account when arriving at their decision.  (It 
should be noted if the Licensing Authority wishes to make representation regarding 
application as a relevant authority under the Licensing Act 2003 a further Licensing Officer 
will be required to attend the committee and Act as a relevant authority). 

The Members will be able to ask questions of the Licensing Officer(s) presenting the report to 
clarify any issues arising out of the Report.

7 The Applicant’s case

(a) The Applicant/representative to address the Sub-Committee and to call any witnesses 
where permission has been granted (maximum period of 10 minutes).  Parties may give 
their evidence by making a statement or by being questioned by their representative.

(b) The objectors/representatives shall be allowed to put questions to the applicant/ 
representative and any witnesses (maximum five minutes).

(c) The members of the Licensing Sub-committee to put questions to the applicant/ 
representative and any witnesses

Page 14



8 The Objector(s) case 
(a) The Objectors/representatives to address the Sub-Committee and to call any 

witnesses, where permission has been granted (maximum period of 10 minutes).
(The responsible authorities eg Police, Fire Authority, followed by any other person in 
the order in which they submitted their written representations.  Where a large group 
have objected, they should be encouraged to appoint a single spokesperson in order to 
save time and avoid repetition).

(b) The applicant/representative shall be allowed to put questions to the objectors/ 
representatives and any witnesses, (maximum five minutes).

(c) The members of the Licensing Sub-committee to put questions to the objectors/ 
representatives and any witnesses.

9 Closing Statements
(a) Objectors or their representative(s) to sum up (maximum of five minutes).

(In the order in which they addressed the Sub-Committee, if more than one).

(b) Applicant or representative to sum up (maximum of five minutes).
(At this stage the applicant/representative should indicate whether, in the light of the 
representations made, they wish to amend their application or offer any conditions to 
overcome the objections and/or promote the licensing objectives).

10 Decision
If there are no further matters to be resolved, the Chair will ask all the parties if they are 
satisfied that they have had a fair hearing and will then close the proceedings.

The Sub-committee to consider whether it is in the public interest that they deliberate in 
private or whether this part of the hearing should continue to take place in public.

Pass resolution to exclude the press and public (including the parties and their 
representatives) pursuant to Regulation 14(2) during this part of the hearing, while the Sub-
Committee discusses its decision.  Everyone should then be asked withdraw from the room, 
except the Licensing Officer(s) presenting the report, the Democratic Services Officer and 
the Head of Law and Standards or his nominated representative(s).  These officers shall be 
entitled to remain but only for the purpose of offering advice as to procedure or any particular 
point of law.  The Sub-Committee may withdraw into a private room to do this 

The Members of the Sub-Committee will deliberate and come to their decision.  The reasons 
for the decision, the material findings of fact and any conditions will be agreed and recorded 
in writing by the Chair.  In the event of any disagreement, any matter under consideration 
shall be determined by a simple majority of votes cast.

The hearing will then resume in public.  The Chair will announce the decision and give the 
reasons for that decision, any material findings of fact, any licence conditions that are to be 
imposed and the licensing objectives that they relate to (unless, where permitted by the 
regulations, the decision is to be communicated at a later time).

11 Repeat process for each hearing

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Report
Licensing Sub-Committee
Part 1 

Date: 23rd July 2019 

Subject Licensing Application

Purpose The consideration and decision in respect of an application under Licensing Act 2003 for 
the grant of a Club Premises Certificate.

Author William Lewis – Licensing Officer as Administrative Authority 

Ward As indicated in the report

Summary The Licensing Committee have statutory and delegated powers to take decisions in 
relation to licensing applications. The Licensing Committee will make the decision on the 
application made pursuant to the relevant legislation under which the application has 
been made.

Proposal To make a decision on the application as detailed within this report.

Contact Principal Licensing Officer

Action by Head of Law and Regulation

Timetable Statutory Consultation Period

Signed

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



1. Application

An application for the grant of a new Club premises certificate for the Pioneer Club, 1 Rochester Road, 
Newport NP19 8PB, was served on the Licensing Authority on the 20th May 2019 in accordance with 
Section 71 Licensing Act 2003.  

The application was accompanied by a declaration for a club premises certificate to be granted, a copy 
of the intended Club Rules and a plan of the premises can be found in Appendix 1 of the report.  

Albeit that this application is for the ‘grant’ of a new Club Premises Certificate it is of importance that the 
Licensing Sub-Committee are aware of a brief history of the previous Licensing History of the premises 
as detailed below. However, the application and the named officers of the club have had no known 
association with previous occupation of the premises.

The Premises & History 

The premises to which this application relates is located on the junction of Rochester Road and Conway 
Road, Newport, which, predominantly is a highly populated residential area surrounded on all sides by 
residential homes and occupancy. (Location and Images are found within Appendix 2 of the report). 

The premises operated as a registered club (Newport Pioneer Working Mens Club) under the Licensing 
Act of 1964. In August 2005 the club converted their club registration to a Club Premises Certificate 
under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

The premises then ceased to operate as a Club sometime between April 2008 and August 2008. The 
property was then acquired by Harvey’s Leisure Limited who applied for a Premises Licence for the 
property. The premises was granted a Premises Licence under Section 17 Licensing Act 2003 on 06th 
October 2008 following a hearing before Newport City Council Licensing Sub-Committee. (The minutes 
and decision schedule in respect of the hearing are included at Appendix 3 of the report)

Between 06th October 2008 and 01st February 2018 Harvey’s Leisure Limited had a number of tenancy 
agreements with various persons specified as the Designated Premises Supervisor and there were also 
periods when in the fact the premises were not in operation.  

The premises was then sold in 2018 to Payne Lettings and on the 01st February 2018 the Premises 
Licence transferred to Mr Robert Steed. Simultaneous to this transfer there was an application for a full 
variation of the Premises Licence to remove the first floor of the premises from the licence as a result of 
re-development to residential accommodation and to increase the days and times for the provision of 
regulated entertainment. 

This application was later amended by Mr Steed who withdrew the request for changes in respect of the 
provision of regulated entertainment.

During Mr Steed’s tenure there were a number of complaints relating to noise from regulated 
entertainment which were dealt with by Newport City Council noise pollution team and officers of the 
Licensing Authority. 

On 14th September 2018 the Premises Licence was then transferred to Ian Edwards and it is apparent 
that it was not trading regularly from that date.

On 26th January 2019 the premises attracted further complaints concerning noise and disorder and when 
this was investigated it was learned that there were new tenants who had opened the premises and were 
providing unlicensable activities on 26th January 2019 and that the likelihood was that Ian Edwards was 
no longer associated with the premises. 

Ian Edwards was interviewed on 01st February 2019. He confirmed that he had no further involvement in 
the premises and formally surrendered the Premises Licence.

Page 18



The tenants were formally interviewed on 06th February 2019 and it became clear that they had little 
awareness of the licensing requirements in respect of this premises and had been misled by the landlord 
whose own awareness of licensing requirements was also limited. The tenants determined to withdraw 
from the agreement and it was determined that there was no public interest in instigating proceedings 
against them because the licence had already been surrendered and that they would not be applying for 
a new Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate.

2. Licensable Activities

The application seeks to provide the following Licensable Activities

 Supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club. 
Monday to Thursday between 2.00pm and 10.30pm
Friday and Saturday between 2.00pm and 11.00pm
Sunday between 10.00am and 4.00pm

 Performance of Live Music
Monday to Thursday between 4.00pm and 9.00pm
Friday between 4.00pm and 10.00pm
Saturday between 4.00pm and 11.00pm

 Playing of Recorded Music 
Monday to Friday between 4.00pm and 9.00pm
Sunday between 10.00am and 4.00pm

3. Promotion of the Licensing Objectives

Section L (Page 19) of the application describes the proposed steps by the applicant for the promotion of 
the Licensing Objectives of:

 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
 Public Safety
 The prevention of public nuisance
 The protection of children from harm

This should also be read in conjunction with the Club Rules that can be found in Appendix 1 of the 
report.

4. Representations

Responsible Authorities
On 20th May 2019 Heddlu Gwent Police served an objection notice on the Licensing Authority this 
objection can be found in Appendix 4 of the report. However, on the 21st May 2019 the Police withdrew 
their objection following agreement with the applicant to attach two further conditions to the proposed 
operating schedule.  

On 30th May 2019 Newport City Council Environmental Health (Noise and Neighbourhood Team) served 
an objection notice on the Licensing Authority (Appendix 5). 

On 04th June 2019 an objection (Appendix 6) to the application was served by Mr Alastair Dearling 
(Licensing Manager) exercising a role as a ‘responsible authority’ by virtue of Section 182 Licensing Act 
2003 (amended guidance.) 

Page 19



Other Persons
On 03rd June 2019 an objection (Appendix 7) to the grant of a Club Premises Certificate was served by 
email on the Licensing Authority by Mr Garrett of 24, Conway Road, Newport NP19 8PA. This objection 
is considered to be a relevant representation under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

5. Policy Considerations
Relevant extracts of the Statement of Licensing Policy as regards this application include:

6. Legal Considerations
The decision must be taken following consideration of the representations received with a view to 
promoting the licensing objectives which are:

Prevention of crime and disorder
Public Safety
Prevention of Public Nuisance
Protection of Children from Harm

In each case the Sub-Committee may make the following determination
a) To grant the application.
b) To modify the conditions of the licence, by altering, omitting or adding to them, where relevant.
c) Reject the whole or part of the application.

All decisions taken by the Sub-Committee must 
(a) be within the legal powers of the Council and its Committees; 
(b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; 
(c) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by the Council eg. standing 
     orders and financial regulations; 
(d) be fully and properly informed; 
(e) be properly motivated; 
(f) be taken having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and 
(g) be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

7. Issues for discussion

7.1 The proposed application for a new club certificate.  
7.2 The representations made in respect of the application.
7.4 Newport City Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
7.5 If mindful to grant the application the attachment of any conditions in order to promote the four 
      Licensing Objectives.

8. Financial Summary

The costs  and financial implications: You must discuss financial implications with the Head of Finance 
and the report must identify from where your proposals will be funded, together with any impact on 
budgets or any opportunity costs.

Year 1 
(Current)
£

Year 2

£

Year 3

£

Ongoing

£

Notes
including budgets heads affected

Costs
(Income)
Net Costs
(Savings)
Net Impact 
on Budget

Page 20



Risks

It is important to identify and manage any project or scheme’s exposure to risk and have in place 
controls to deal with those risks. 

In this section, you should consider the key risks facing the proposals in your report, particularly those 
which would impact on delivery or sustainability of the project of projected outcomes. You will need to 
include details of how risks will be managed. If your proposals rely on short or medium term grant aid or 
funding streams you will need to outline your exit or continuation policy here.

You will need to complete the following Risk table

Risk Impact  of 
Risk if it 
occurs*
(H/M/L)

Probability 
of risk 
occurring 
(H/M/L)

What is the Council doing or what 
has it done to avoid the risk or 
reduce its effect

Who is responsible 
for dealing with the 
risk?

Making a 
unlawful 
decision

High Low The Committee will consult with 
the Legal Officer and Licensing 
Officer to determine if any decision 
is lawful and proportionate.  
Members training.

Chairperson.  
Legal Officer.

The licensing 
committee 
departing from 
the licensing 
policy. 

Medium  Low If the Committee wishes to depart 
from the Councils policy they must 
give good reason for this and 
obtain advice from the Legal 
Officer when departing from the 
Policies to ensure the decision is 
lawful. 
Members training.

Chairperson.  
Legal Officer. 

The applicant 
does not have 
a fair hearing 

High Low A Licensing Committee procedure 
should be followed by the 
committee. 

The Legal Officer alongside the 
Democratic Service Officer will 
advise the committee if at any 
stage an unfair hearing is taking 
place. 
Members training.

Democratic Service 
Officer.
Chairperson. Legal 
Officer.

* Taking account of proposed mitigation measures

Links to Council Policies and Priorities
This report has been prepared with regard to Newport City Council Statement of Licensing Policies 2015 
and under the statutory requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of Licensing Hearings.

Options Available
The Licensing Sub-Committee may:
 Grant the application as applied or Grant the application but modify activities and times during which 

can be provided.
 Attach conditions for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives in respect of either of above 

decisions.
 Refuse the application.

Background Papers
Set out a list of any relevant background papers and whether they are available to the public.

Dated: 23 July 2019

Page 21



Appendix 1

1. Copy of the application under section 71 Licensing Act 2003 for the grant of a Club premises 
certificate

2. Copy of the Declaration for the Club premises certificate to be granted.
3. Copy of the Rules of the Club

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Appendix 2

Street Map and Images courtesy of ‘Google Maps’

Conway Road

Page 50



Pioneer Club

Rochester Road

Page 51



Appendix 3

Minutes and Decision schedule in respect of application by  Harveys Leisure (South Wales) 
Limited for the grant of a Premises Licence in respect of The Pioneer determined by Newport City 
council Licensing Sub-Committee on 06th Oct 2008

Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Appendix 4 Gwent Police Representation (conditions agreed with applicant)  

HEDDLU GWENT POLICE

RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS
PREMISES LICENCE /CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE or 
VARIATION OF THE ABOVE
S.18, 41A, 72 and 86A of the LICENSING ACT 2003

Representations by the Police to be made within 28 Days of receipt of the application.

Date application received:  17/05/2019

Date representations sent to Licensing Authority:  20/05/2019 

Date representations sent to applicant:

Name of authority: Newport City Council

Premises Name and Address: The Pioneer Club, 1 Rochester Road, Newport, NP19 8PB

Applicant Name: Jason Lewis

Applicant Address: C/o The Pioneer Club, 1 Rochester Road, Newport, NP19 8PB

Representation made to add the following conditions to the licence to support the licensing 
objectives:

1.  A challenge 25 policy is to be adopted at the club.  Fully documented staff training to be done in 
relation to this policy, as well as training on selling alcohol to drunk persons.  Posters are to be 
displayed at the premise to promote the challenge 25 policy.

2. CCTV at the location is to cover the entirety of the licensable area.  This is to have capability of 
recording for 28 days and should be made available to police officers/staff and other authorised 
persons upon request.

PC 246 Hurst – Harm Prevention Officer, East LPA, Gwent Police

OBJ 2.1

Page 56



Appendix 5 (Objection Noise & Neighbourhood Team)

MEMORANDUM
DATE:   29th May 2019

TO:        Environmental Licensing

FROM:  Noise & Neighbourhood team

Application to for a Club Premises Certificate to be granted under the 
Licensing Act 2003

PREMISE DETAILS: THE PIONEER CLUB, 1 ROCHESTER ROAD, NEWPORT, SOUTH WALES, 
NP19 8PB

I refer to the above-mentioned application for a Club Premises Certificate, which was received by the 
Noise & Neighbourhood team on the 21st May 2019 for comment. I wish to make representation under 
the “prevention of public nuisance” licensing objective as I am concerned that the application to licence 
for the provision of regulated entertainment could have an adverse impact on nearby residents.  

Based on the information currently provided within the application, I would object to this application. My 
main concern is the likelihood of a noise disturbance being caused by unwanted noise (live and/or 
recorded) music emanating from the premises and possible noise disturbance from the personal 
behaviour of patrons, whilst using the external areas within the curtilage of the premises.  

However, should the applicant wish to employ an acoustic engineer to prepare a scheme to make the 
premises suitable for both entertainment purposes and external usage by patrons, such a report must 
then be submitted to the Licensing Authority; and on the requirement that such sound insulation works 
are completed, I would then withdraw my representation.

Should the applicant wish to discuss my objection or comment on the issues raised further they may 
contact the Licensing Authority.

Regards

Brian Miles
Brian Miles
Pollution Control Officer
Swyddog Rheoli Llygredd

Page 57



Appendix 6 Objection (Licensing Authority)

Dear Sirs,

LICENSING ACT 2003-NOTICE OF OBJECTION under Section 72 Licensing Act 2003

TO AN APPLICATION UNDER SECTION 60 LICENSING ACT 2003 FOR A Club Premises 
Certificate IN RESPECT OF The Pioneer Club, 1 Rochester Road, Newport, NP19 8PB. 

I Alastair Dearling Licensing manager of Newport City Council’s Licensing Authority acting in my capacity 
as a ‘Responsible Authority’ by virtue of Section 182 (4) Licensing Act 2003 (amended guidance) wish to 
object to the granting of a Club Premises Certificate to 1 Rochester Road, Newport, on the following 
grounds:
 Public Nuisance
 Crime & Disorder 

I think it imperative to stipulate that the Licensing Authority (Acting as a Responsible Authority) is not 
averse to the granting of a Club Certificate for 1 Rochester Road but it’s imperative that:

A) That the Club runs in good faith.

Factors which have a bearing upon whether or not a club is deemed to be established and conducted in 
good faith are:
 any arrangements restricting the club's freedom to purchase of alcohol
 any provision in the rules or arrangements under which the money or property of the club or any gain 

arising from the carrying on of the club is or maybe applied otherwise than for the benefit of the club 
as a whole or for charitable, benevolent or political purposes

 the arrangements for giving members information about the finances of the club
 the books of account and other records kept to ensure the accuracy of that information
 the nature of the premises occupied by the club.

(I think it’s also important to state that qualifying clubs should not be confused with proprietary clubs, 
which are clubs run commercially by individuals or businesses for the purpose of profit. These require 
the normal Premises Licence. The definition of profit for this purpose is that those responsible for the 
club intended to make a profit. If they make a charge simply to cover costs and accidentally make a 
small profit owing to miscalculation, they need not worry. What matters is their intention at the outset.)

B) That the club operates without causing nuisance to local resident be that from entertainment or 

Simply members of the club using the external areas of the property, for smoking, drinking or departing 
at the end of the night. 

Concerning Point A above, despite the application being accompanied by a very comprehensive club 
constitution it seems to that it is an old template from a Club located in Reading and refers to the old 
1964 Licensing Act. This will of course l be required to be changed before the club operates. Despite the 
consultation being comprehensive I feel that it’s imperative that further evidence should be provided 
before the club operates to clearly demonstrate that it will run as a club of “Good will” and is not as a 
proprietary club.

As such, I would recommend the following conditions to be attached to the Club Certificate.

 Before any Alcohol is supplied in the premises, the Club must present to Licensing Authority 
evidence in that the club has at least 25 members.

 The Club must also provide the Licensing Authority with full details of its Committee Officers and 
contact details alongside their roles in the Club in line with the Club Constitution before alcohol is 
supplied.  If a member of Committee changes the Committee must inform the Licensing Authority in 
writing within 14 days of the change.

Page 58



 Details of the Auditor as stipulated with the Constitution should be supplied to the Licensing Authority 
before Alcohol is supplied, any changes to the accountant the club must inform the Licensing 
Authority in writing within 14 days of the change.

 A maximum of only 3 Guest can be signed in by each member (As stipulated within the Clubs 
Constitution) 

Though only 15 guests are permitted on the premises at one time unless a registered SIA doorperson is 
present on the premises in this case a maximum of 30 guests are permitted on the premises.

 All guest must be signed in via a “Guest” book, the book must be kept for a minimum of 6 months 
and the following details should be recorded in the book (the “book” can of course be in a form of an 
electronic device) 
The name and address of the guest.
The members name who has signed in the guest.
Date and Time the Guest Entered the Premises
Time of when Guest left the Premises.

 All members should only be supplied alcohol on the production of a Members Card.
The members card should have the following details on the name, photo and Members Number/ID 
and the Date of the Grant of membership.

In regard to point B raised above (Public nuisance) 

I fully support Newport City Council Noise & Neighbouring Team objection dated the 29th May 2019. 
Unfortunately, the premises of late has caused public nuisance to local resident(s). Despite the 
application having a comprehensive Club Constitution unfortunately, the operating schedule 
unfortunately does not full address the issue of public nuisance in light of historic issues. 
The premises itself has historically held a Club licence under the 1964 “Licensing” Act, this licence was 
then converted under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 back in  2005. The Premises has 
operated under a Club Premises Certificate until the summer of 2008. The premises then closed for a 
period before the Licensing Authority received a premises application for the building so it could operate 
as a “Public House”.  

This application was objected to by both local residents and responsible authorities as such the 
application was required to be determined by Licencing Committee, the committee determined to grant a 
licence to Harvey’s Leisure Ltd on 6th October 2008. From October 2008 until 1st February 2018 the 
premises operated under a number of tenancy of wills agreements with various persons specified as the 
Designated Premises Supervisor and there were also known periods when the premises were closed 
down or functioning.  

The Premises Licence was then transferred from Harvey’s Ltd to a Mr Robert Steed on the 1st February 
2018. Though the Licence at this stage was unable to operate legally due to the fact the plans attached 
to the premises licence no longer harmonized with the current layout of the property. 

This was due to the “function” room that was previously located on the second floor of the building being 
converted into separate living accommodation. As such a full variation was submitted by the then 
Licence holder Robert Steed on the 31st January 2018 to vary the licence, the licence was granted on 
the 6th March 2018. 

It is known after the variation the Pollution Control Team shortly received complaints regarding both 
entertainment noise and noise from patrons including patrons in the yard / “Beer garden of the property”
Due to the complaints a letter of warning was sent by Pollution control team (I attach a copy of this letter 
to the representation). This letter was hand delivered by Alastair Dearling (Licensing Manager) who 
spoke with Mr Steed who stipulated without the provision of entertainment the business would simply not 
be viable and costs of soundproofing would simply not be feasible.  

Page 59



On 14th September 2018 the Premises Licence was then transferred to Ian Edwards though once again 
the premises did not trade regularly.  

On 26th January 2019 the premises further attracted complaints concerning noise and disorder. To the 
extent that a local resident was required to contact Gwent Police.
 PC Nick Frost of Gwent Police visited the premises and replied to the compliant 
 “ A high number of youths in the street causing a noise nuisance, I suspect this is a regular occurrence 
from this club so by all means if it happens again contact the Police Immediately.     
When the Licensing Authority investigating the complaint it learned that the premises had new tenants 
and Mr Edwards had left the premises but had failed to inform the Licensing Authority, this resulted in Mr 
Edwards surrendering the licence.  
Though it is recognised by the Licensing Authority acting as responsible authority that the number of 
complaints regarding public nuisance is not  significant in numbers, the premises rarely operates and 
when it does it unfortunately attracts complaints.  

Though the application is of course for brand new applicant(s) the building, location and the structure of 
the building are of course the same and the historic issues are not always simply down to poor  
management.

 I fully support Condition proposed by Noise & Neighbouring Team:

That the applicant should employ an acoustic engineer to prepare a scheme to make the premises 
suitable for both entertainment purposes and external usage by patrons, such a report must then be 
submitted to the Licensing Authority; and on the requirement that such sound insulation works are 
completed.

It is felt imperative that local resident(s) are protected. Though there are provision under the Licensing 
Act 2003 to call a premises into review alongside other legislation for example the Environmental 
Protection Act if the Club undermines the four Licensing objectives. Unfortunately in practice these 
processes can take time with a review taking minimum of 38 days to be heard and this is without any 
time allocated for investigation. 

Once again I think it’s imperative to stipulate that the Licensing Authority Acting as a Responsible 
Authority is not averse to the granting of a Club Certificate for 1 Rochester Road. But the applicant 
should be required to demonstrate before the opening the club it will firstly be run in good will and that it 
will not cause any further public nuisance to local resident(s)  of course an  acoustic report would help  
mitigate this allowing the club to operate within the four licensing objectives.  
I would be happy to mediate with the applicant after the end of consultation 

Yours Sincerely 

Alastair Dearling
Prif Swyddog Trwyddedu / Principal Licensing Officer  
Y Gyfraith a Rheoleiddio / Law & Regulation 
Cyngor Dinas Casnewydd / Newport City Council
01633656656 / 01633851328
Alastair.Dearling@newport.gov.uk

Page 60

mailto:Alastair.Dearling@newport.gov.uk


Appendix 7 

(Representation of ‘Other Person’ Mr Garrett 24, Conway Road, Newport NP19 8PA. Served on 
the Licensing Authority on 03rd June 2019.)

Representations regarding Club Premises Licence Application 

I believe that the application for a Club Premises Licence in relation to the above premises should not be 
permitted.  I believe that the application does not adhere to the Principals of the mainLicensing 
Objectives as follows:-

Issues with Proposed Varlation of Licence and Potentially Existing Licence
I believe that the licence could breach, at least one, if not more, of the Licensing Objectives and be a 
breach and contravention of the Licensing Act 2003 and Statement of Licensing Policy 2011.

1.  The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The area of Conway Road/Rochester Road is already a significantly prevalent area in terms of crime.  
The underpass and Tweedy Lane are well known as hot-spots in terms of drugs and youths 
congregating and causing damage to various cars. The recent, and historic, crime reported in this 
immediate area are a testament to this.  I believe the risk is too great that this could be exacerbated with 
the proposed Licence. 

The streets that run parallel with the Premises have resident’s parking for the properties of Conway 
Road and Rochester Road.  These residents have already been in a battle of vandalism from youths and 
also intoxicated adults who utilise Conway Road as a thoroughfare from Maindee pubs to other areas.  
Cars and properties have already been subjected to criminal damage (as reports will confirm). 

The increased risk the Licence poses is I suggest too great. 

2.            Public Safety

I believe that public safety would be significantly and irretrievably compromised in the event that the 
proposed Licence be granted.  The area surrounding the premises is exclusively residential properties.  
Indeed, the nearest commercial premises is on Chepstow Road.  Many of the properties (including 
immediately bordering the Premises) have young families, pensioners and disabled people.  Very much 
the most vulnerable of society.  The risks associated with intoxicated individuals I believe to be too 
great.  It is also likely that the increase in risk of crime associated with Licenced premises combined with 
that which the area is already battling would, I believe, place too great and unnecessary a pressure on 
our Authority’s emergency services.  Police and Community Support Officers are already too stretched to 
intensively patrol the area in a bid to combat the crime that is already present, regardless of adding the 
potential (however potentially small) of more alcohol related crime to that.   

3.            Prevention of Public Nuisance

I believe that the potential of the Premises and it’s customers to cause a public nuisance, given the 
surrounding area and the premises’ neighbours is significant.  It is grossly unfair for the residents to be 
subjected to the noise levels linked with the Premises and issues have already been raised in relation to 
noise from this premises.
It is also worth mentioning that an abutting lane that joins Tweedy Lane to Rochester Road has already 
had to be boarded up because of fly-tipping and drug paraphernalia being dumped. 

4.            Protection of Children from Harm

As mentioned previously, the area immediately surrounding the premises as well as being the homes for 
various residents who have purchased their homes, some are Council and Private Tenants but also 
many hold young families, whose children play on their bikes/skateboards etc. in the streets on either 

Page 61



side of the Premises.   I believe there also to be a risk posed to children following the consumption of 
alcohol by frequenters of the premises.  Whatsmore, regardless of how conscientious the Licensee and 
it’s staff may be regarding the use of drugs etc. there is an inherent increased drug risk associated with 
Licensed Premises and it’s frequenters and I believe that risk overflows to children and be too great.

I am aware that many residents share my concerns.
By way of background, the premises for which the Licence is sought is The Pioneer.  It is situated on the 
corner of the junction of Conway Road and Rochester Road.  This premises has stood empty and closed 
for some considerable time (in excess of 5 years) prior to the failed planning application lodged last year 
and a further failed planning application earlier this year when the intention was to utilise the Premises 
as a Public House.   

I do not believe that the Premises being granted permission to operate again as a Club is compatible 
with the Adopted Local Development Plan 2011 - 2026.  
Of significant concern is that the premises has not held a Licence since early December 2018 and yet 
proceeded to open and operate and sell alcohol unlawfully including as recently as 26th  January 2019 
when the police had to be called for a gang of youths emerging from the premises fighting in the street.  
The police entered the premises on this occasion and I believe may be consulted as part of this planning 
application. Indeed, the police have had to be called on previous occasion as I am sure that their own 
records will verify.   

The Premises had unlawfully been operating as a Public House since March 2018 and there have 
already been significant issues experienced by both myself and other neighbours as a result of which we 
have had cause to raise issues.  

Of great concern is the proximity of the property to neighbouring residents, the impact of the increased 
vehicles for frequenters of the Premises when it unlawfully opened as a  Public House last year already 
had a detrimental impact upon the locality.  Indeed, I have had cause myself to report issues of 
dangerous parking by frequenters of the Premises.  The Premises is on the corner of a junction between 
Conway Road and Rochester Road and frequenters are blocking the junction to the extent that cars 
have had to drive on the wrong side of the road to pass parked cars for people using the Premises.  

Photo evidence of this has been supplied to the Authority. 

Also people parking alongside the Premises on Conway Road mean that people emerging from the 
Rochester Road junction have their view severely obstructed.  This is obviously very dangerous.  There 
has already been one really bad accident at this very junction previously within the last 2 years.  I fear 
that it is only a matter of time before another serious accident occurs as a direct result of the impact that 
this Premises is having upon the highway. 

I also understand that officers of planning department have attended on various occasions and 
witnessed for themselves the parking issues experienced in relation to this premises.   
Whatsmore, a further issue has been raised with the Planning Department that awaits further clarification 
in that there is a yard area within the Premises that previously was a passageway to the barrell store 
etc.  This has been utilised by frequenters of the Premises when it was operating as a Public House as a 
beer garden/smoking area.  This smoking area directly overlooks the bedroom and bathroom of myself 
and my immediate neighbours.  This impacts significantly upon our privacy.  Again, this yard was never 
created with the intention of it being utilised as a beer garden, for the obvious reasons that it overlooks 
neighbouring properties and the inherent noise associated with a beer garden/smoking area.  I believe 
that this issue warrants it’s own investigation in terms of change of usage, or should require it’s own 
consideration – as the fundamental use of this area has changed and the impact of the conversion of this 
yard area to a smoking area/beer garden has not had it’s impact to residential amenity appropriately 
scrutinised.  I have raised this issue directly with Planning.

Within the Noise Assessment submitted in support of previous planning application of considerable note 
is the fact that the Acoustic Engineers have appeared to have deliberately excluded several properties 
for example, 20, 22, 26 Conway Road and, indeed, my own property 24 Conway Road (which is directly 

Page 62



opposite the yard area proposed to be utilised as the beer garden/smoking area).  It is believed that 
these properties have been deliberately excluded as a “sensitive receptor” -page 5 of Report so as not to 
negatively reflect within the readings and ultimately deliberately mislead the Authority.  This has been 
drawn to Environmental Health Department’s attention.  The closest property that they identified as a 
“sensitive receptor” is 18 Conway Road which is, in fact, nowhere near the beer garden/smoking area of 
the Premises.  In view of this, and particularly as some of the most significantly affected properties have 
not been included for the purposes of the acoustic assessment, the readings contained therein cannot 
reasonably be trusted to be either accurate or, indeed, reliably reflective.  As it would appear that the 
Club would be operating for similar hours to when the Premises was unlawfully run as a Public House 
then similar concerns are raised in terms of noise nuisance and it is imperative for Environmental Health 
to fully assess the impact of reopening the Premises as a Club will have.  

Obviously at the time when the Premises last operated as Club smoking was still permitted within Clubs 
and Pubs and obviously the situation has changed significant since then.        

Since the premises has been open, numerous noise complaints (evidenced with recordings) and warden 
attendance has been requested as a direct result of noise associated with the Premises – again 
including as recently as 26 th January 2019.  I request that these logged recordings be included within 
the consideration of this application.

Both myself and my neighbour’s have already had cause to raise complaints previously pertaining to the 
noise emanating from the Premises.  We have had singing and shouting etc. up until past midnight.  
These have previously been the subject of numerous complaints, including an Enforcement Notice being 
issued to the previous Designated Premises Supervisor. 

Also of concern is the impact of light nuisance which has formed the basis of a separate complaint to the 
authority and which are currently under investigation.  Lighting from the yard area directly permeates 
habitable and, indeed, bedrooms opposite and it is unclear as to how this can be avoided whilst still 
providing light for the frequenters of the beer garden/smoking area.  It is requested that this be bourne 
into consideration in terms of the application.  

I am also aware and have had a site of a Report that was prepared for the Licensing Sub-Committee 
dated 6th  October 2008 by Robin Grey – then Head of Public Protection and Environmental Services.  
As cited within that Report - at that time various representations were made by various residents within 
the area regarding concerns with the then Club Premises Licence in relation to noise and nuisance etc.  I 
believe that this is indicative of what would be to come in the event that a renewed Club Premises 
Licence were to be issued, especially taking into account the most recent issues with the Premises.  
I would be more than happy to expand upon any of the above points if so required. Mr Garrett – 24 
Conway Road, Newport, NP19 8PA

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Licensing Sub-Committee Code of Practice
	4 Application for a Premises Licence

